CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION

WARREN R. MUIR

THE TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL ACT: FROM THE PERSPECTIVE OF WARREN R. MUIR

Transcript of Interviews Conducted by

Jody A. Roberts and Kavita Hardy

at

National Academy of Sciences Washington, D.C.

on

22 January 2010

(With Subsequent Corrections and Additions)

This oral history is designated Free Access.

Please note: Users citing this interview for purposes of publication are obliged under the terms of the Chemical Heritage Foundation (CHF) Center for Oral History to credit CHF using the format below:

Warren R. Muir, interview by Jody A. Roberts and Kavita Hardy at The National Academy of Sciences, Washington DC, 22 January 2010 (Philadelphia: Chemical Heritage Foundation, Oral History Transcript #0866).



Chemical Heritage Foundation Center for Oral History 315 Chestnut Street Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106



The Chemical Heritage Foundation (CHF) serves the community of the chemical and molecular sciences, and the wider public, by treasuring the past, educating the present, and inspiring the future. CHF maintains a world-class collection of materials that document the history and heritage of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; encourages research in CHF collections; and carries out a program of outreach and interpretation in order to advance an understanding of the role of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; and industries in shaping society.

CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION Center for Oral History FINAL RELEASE FORM

This document contains my understanding and agreement with the Chemical Heritage Foundation with respect to my participation in the audio- and/or video-recorded interview conducted by Jody Roberts and Kavita Hardy on 22 January 2010. I have read the transcript supplied by the Chemical Heritage Foundation.

- 1. The recordings, transcripts, photographs, research materials, and memorabilia (collectively called the "Work") will be maintained by the Chemical Heritage Foundation and made available in accordance with general policies for research and other scholarly purposes.
- 2. I hereby grant, assign, and transfer to the Chemical Heritage Foundation all right, title, and interest in the Work, including the literary rights and the copyright, except that I shall retain the right to copy, use, and publish the Work in part or in full until my death.
- 3. The manuscript may be read and the recording(s) heard/viewed by scholars approved by the Chemical Heritage Foundation unless restrictions are placed on the transcript as listed below.

This constitutes my entire and complete understanding.

(Signature) Warren R. Muir (Date)

OPTIONAL: I wish to place the following restrictions on the use of this interview:

I understand that regardless of any restrictions that may be placed on the transcript of the interview, the Chemical Heritage Foundation retains the rights to all materials generated about my oral history interview and will make the title page, abstract, table of contents, chronology, index, et cetera (collectively called the "Front Matter and Index") available on the Chemical Heritage Foundation's website. Should the Chemical Heritage Foundation wish to post to the Internet the content of the oral history interview, that is, direct quotations, audio clips, video clips, or other material from the oral history recordings or the transcription of the recordings, the Chemical Heritage Foundation will be bound by the restrictions for use placed on the Work as detailed above. Should the Chemical Heritage Foundation wish to post to the Internet the entire oral history interview during my lifetime, I will have the opportunity to permit or deny this posting.

I understand that the Chemical Heritage Foundation will enforce my wishes until the time of my death, when any restrictions will be removed.

WARREN R. MUIR

Education

1967	BA, Chemistry, Amherst College
1968	MS, Chemistry, Northwestern University
1971	PhD, Chemistry, Northwestern University
	Professional Experience
	Council on Environmental Quality, Executive Office of the President,
	Washington, DC
1971-1973	Staff Member
1974-1978	Senior Staff Member for Environmental Health
1070 1000	US Environmental Protection Agency, Washington, DC
1978-1980	Deputy Assistant Administrator for Testing and Evaluation
1980-1981	Director, Office of Toxic Substances
	Johns Hopkins University, Baltimore, Maryland
1981-1983	Visiting Associate Professor, Department of Environmental
	Health Sciences
1983-1999	Adjunct Professor, Department of Environmental Health Sciences
	American University, Washington, DC
1982-1984	Adjunct Professor, Department of Biology
1000 1005	IDEA*TECH Associates, Inc., Alexandria, Virginia
1982-1985	Co-founder and Chairman of the Board
	Hampshire Research Associates, Inc., Alexandria, Virginia
1981-1999	Founder and President
1701 1777	
	The Hampshire Research Institute, Alexandria, Virginia
1987-1999	Founder and President
	National Assistance of Grieners Westing DC
1000 2001	National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC
1999-2001	Executive Director, Commission on Life Sciences
1999-2001	Executive Director, Board on Agriculture and Natural Resources
2001-present	Executive Director, Division on Earth and Life Studies

Honors

1967	Howard Waters Doughty Prize
1967	American Chemical Society Connecticut Valley Student Award
1967	Forris Jewett Moore Award
1980	US Environmental Protection Agency Outstanding Service Award
1992	US Environmental Protection Agency Administrator's Award for Pollution
	Prevention
1992	Awarded Officer Brother (O.St.J.), in The Most Venerable Order of St.
	John of Jerusalem, by H.R.H. Queen Elizabeth II
1996	Awarded Commander (C.St.J.), in The Most Venerable Order of St. John
	of Jerusalem, by H.R.H. Queen Elizabeth II
2003	National Academies Community Service Award
	-

ABSTRACT

Warren Muir received a bachelor's degree in chemistry from Amherst College. He then moved to Northwestern University's PhD program and was captured by the new societal awareness of environmental issues. He joined Students for a Better Environment and with a colleague published the first list of phosphates in detergents. During this time Earth Day originated, and demands for governmental protection took off. Muir was recruited into the Council on Environmental Quality, whose initiatives included the Clean Water, Clean Air, and Safe Drinking Water Acts; these acts would control chemicals through production, distribution, and use instead of the cleanup-contaminate approach used for drugs, food, pesticides, etc. He says the group was small but powerful.

The first hurdle was the lack of knowledge of the universe of chemicals: Who made them, how many were there, how much was there, what were their effects? Should there be a registry, and if so how would it work? The next hurdle was the disagreement between the houses of the US Congress, abetted by lobbying from manufacturers. Finally J. Clarence Davies' report for CEQ was drafted into legislation and passed as the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). At that point it was handed over to the new Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for implementation. The EPA was slow to figure out how to use TSCA. They first developed a chemical inventory and then rules for production and use of new chemicals. Muir discusses several of TSCA's rules and their successes and failures.

Muir founded Hampshire Research Associates, which worked in a number of different areas, mostly pollution prevention. Through INFORM, Inc. Muir and David Sarokin made suggestions that led to the formation of the Toxic Release Inventory (TRI); TRI's chemical analysis of waste led to the Pollution Prevention Act. Hampshire developed the database and wrote the reports for the EPA. Muir moved on to a pollutant release and transfer register for Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD). He says that voluntary actions by manufacturers have also decreased pollution.

Muir says that a only small fraction of uses of a wide range of chemicals causes problems; and that uses are dynamic. He believes, therefore, that a centralized denoting of some chemicals as priority chemicals is not useful. He has five points for improvement: choosing a use-based approach; gathering and tracking information; narrowing the definition of "confidential" in confidential business information (CBI), which he says severely limits sharing of information; making producers responsible; and retaining and improving the new-chemical review. Information is crucial and its availability is increasing exponentially with new technology. Muir maintains that an independent review of the EPA and of the various efforts of the states would be illuminating. Both regulators and manufacturers should have kind of a "general duty clause."

INTERVIEWERS

Jody A. Roberts is the Director of the Institute for Research at the Chemical Heritage Foundation. He received his PhD and MS in Science and Technology Studies from Virginia Tech and holds a BS in Chemistry from Saint Vincent College. His research focuses on the intersections of regulation, innovation, environmental issues, and emerging technologies within the chemical sciences.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Becoming Interested Bachelor's degree in chemistry from Amherst College; PhD from Northwestern University. Vietnam War. Beginnings of environmental awareness and concern. Students for a Better Environment. Develops and publishes first list of phosphates in detergents.	
Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) Recruited while still finishing thesis. Importance of Earth Day; environmental demands. CEQ initiatives: Clean Water Act; Clean Air Act, Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA); Safe Drinking Water Act; Endangered Species Act. Small group with much power. Control through production, distribution, and use instead of cleanup-contaminate approach.	
 Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Defining and describing of chemicals. Disagreements between US Senate and House, especially about new chemicals. Congressional consideration; lobbying from manufacturers. Rules for new chemicals. Passed into law; goes to EPA for implementation. Steven Jellinek. Developing chemical inventory. Core issue problems: defining and restricting confidential business information (CBI); and risk-benefit analysis. Information-sharing severely limited by CBI; crippling expense as well. 	
Hampshire Research Associates (later Institute) and INFORM, Inc. Johns Hopkins University. Founded Hampshire, worked on some TSCA projects and on pollution projects for INFORM, Inc. David Sarokin and Toxic Release Inventory (TRI). Waste avoidance, not treatment or disposal. Ronald Outen. EPA to collect and publish database. Hampshire's and Catherine Miller's role in report on database. Canada and Mexico later emulating United States. Pollutant release and transfer register for Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD). Voluntary actions by manufacturers. Asbestos in schools; stimulating action by requiring reports on asbestos to local parent-teacher associations.	
General Observations Throughput evaluation. Accidental vs. deliberate pollution. Mass balance approach. Centralized priority chemicals approach not useful. Information key. New technology	

Centralized priority chemicals approach not useful. Information key. New technology yields more possibilities for analysis. General duty clause for EPA and manufacturers. Five points for improvement: use-based approach; gathering and tracking of information; narrowing definition of "confidential" in CBI; making producers responsible; retaining and improving new-chemical review. Section 5 not applicable to nanotech. States serve as labs for different approaches in problem-solving. Sees EPA expanding power; considers power expansion counterproductive.

Index

INDEX

Α

Amherst College, 1 asbestos, 6, 13, 17, 22, 23, 24

B

Bhopal, India, 20

С

Canada, 22
Carter, President James E., Jr., 9
CBI. *See* confidential business information
CEQ. *See* President's Council on Environmental Quality
Chicago, Illinois, 2
confidential business information, 7, 12, 16, 18, 25, 26, 27
Costle, Douglas M., 11, 17

D

Daley, Mayor Richard J., 2 Davies, J. Clarence, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8

Е

Earth Day, 2, 4 Eckhardt, Representative Robert C., 9 Elliott, E. Donald, 13 Environmental Protection Agency, 3, 7, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30 EPA. *See* Environmental Protection Agency

F

Ford, President Gerald R., Jr., 9

H

Hampshire Research Associates, 14, 18, 19, 21, 27

I

INFORM, Inc., 18, 19, 21

J

Jackson, Lisa P., 17 Jellinek, Steven D., 11, 16 Johns Hopkins University, 18 Kinney, Janie A., 9

Μ

K

Miller, Catherine G., 21

N

National Academy of Sciences, 17
National Cancer Institute, 20
National Institute of Environmental Health, 12, 22
New Jersey, 20, 29
NIEHS. *See* National Institute of Environmental Health
Nitro, West Virginia, 20
Nixon, President Richard M., 4, 7
Northwestern University, 1, 2

0

OSHA. *See* U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration Outen, Ronald B., 20, 22, 23

Р

PCB, 4, 6, *See* polychlorinated biphenyl phosphates, 2 pollution prevention, 18, 19, 23, 28, 29 polychlorinated biphenyl, 4 President's Council on Environmental Quality, 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 11

S

Sarokin, David J., 19

Т

Tickner, Joel A., 26 Toxic Release Inventory, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 25, 29, 30 Toxic Substances Control Act, 1, 5, 6, 7, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 24, 27, 28, 30 Section 4, 7, 8, 15, 16, 18 Section 5, 7, 9, 14, 15, 18, 27, 28, 30 Section 6, 7, 15, 16, 17, 22 Section 8, 7, 15, 16 Section 9, 7, 8, 9, 17, 28 Train, Russell E., 3 TRI. *See* Toxic Release Inventory TSCA. *See* Toxic Substances Control Act Tunney, Senator John V., 6

US Senate, 6, 7, 8, 9, 20, 23, 25, 26

V

Vietnam War, 2, 4

w

Washington, D.C., 3, 4, 8

U

- US Congress, 4, 5, 8, 9, 22 US Department of Commerce, 8, 9 US Department of State, 2

- US House of Representatives, 6, 7, 8, 9 US Occupational Safety and Health Administration,

16, 25